
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 

AGENDA  
Special Presentation Meeting 

Tuesday, March 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. PRESENTATION BY THE ZONE SERVICE INC.                                                                  Treca DeShields 
 
 
3. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
       
    a. PROCLAMATION: A Proclamation declaring March 2023 National Athletic Training Month in Anderson 

County. 
All Council Members 

      
 
    b. 2023-011: A Resolution congratulating Anna Marie Brock for forty-five years of dedicated service to 

Anderson County. 
Hon. Tommy Dunn 

 
 
     
 
 
4. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                             Hon. John Wright, Jr. 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 21, 2023 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                              minutes not received March 7, 2023    
 
 
4. RESOLUTION PRESENTATION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE ANDERSON COUNTY EMS FOR 

WINNING SYSTEM OF THE YEAR AND STEVE KELLY FOR WINNING DIRECTOR OF THE 
YEAR 

 
Hon. Tommy Dunn 

                                                                                                                                     
 

5. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
6. CITIZEN REMARKS                                                                                    Mr. Don Bowen (allotted 10 minutes) 
 
 
 
7. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    
    a. 2023-005: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business  
        park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. 
        (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

    b. 2023-006: An Ordinance to lease real property to Habitat for Humanity of Anderson County, Inc; and other 
matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
   Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes)                                                          

 
8. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: None 
     
9. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:     

 
    a. 2023-007: An Ordinance to amend section 24-115 (Intensity Standards) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 

County, South Carolina; and other matters related thereto. 
                                                        Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
    b. 2023-008: An Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson County, South Carolina, to grant a right of way and 

easement unto the City of Anderson, South Carolina, across property owned by Anderson County and bearing tax 
map number 150-00-02-005 for installation of a sewer line; and other matters related thereto. 

                                                      
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

   
10. RESOLUTIONS:  None 
 
     
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
      a. Receipt of legal advice regarding Planning Commission appointment 
      b. Council action following Executive Session 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 21, 2023 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

12. APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY NEAR GREEN POND 
Mr. Rusty Burns 

 
 
13. SUMMARY OF FRAENKISCHE'S FILOT                                            Mr. Burris Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
14. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
      a. Bid #23-039 ACTC #131 Resurfacing 
      b. RFQ #23-038 Professional Engineering Services for Solid Waste Department 
 
 
 
 
15. REPORT FROM THE PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 

MARCH  14, 2023 
      a. Discussion of Tree Ordinance 
 b. Discussion of Revisions to Anderson County Stormwater Management Requirements 
 c. Discussion of RV Park Ordinance 

Ms. Cindy Wilson (allotted 10 minutes) 
 

 
16. REQUEST BY COUNCIL:  
      a. Homeland Park Community Watch-District 2,5 
      b. Leadership Anderson Class 38-All Districts 
      c. Pendleton Bass Fishing-All Districts 
      d. Powdersville YMCA Mentor Program-District 6 
 
 
17. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT: 
      a. Building and Codes Report 
      b. Budget Transfers 
      c. Paving 
          d. Special Projects 
 
 
18. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                       Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
19. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
20. ADJOURNMENT

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



A PROCLAMATION DECLARING MARCH 2023 
NATIONAL ATHLETIC TRAINING MONTH IN 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
 

     WHEREAS National Athletic Training Month is in March, and the official theme for 2023 is    
"There's an AT for that;" and 

 
     WHEREAS the National Athletics Trainers' Association represents and supports 45,000 

members of the athletic training profession employed in professional sports, colleges and 
universities, high schools, clinics and hospitals, corporate and industrial settings, branches of the 
military, and the performing arts; and  

 
     WHEREAS the South Carolina Athletic Trainers' Association, founded in 1986, is committed to 

the education of its members and the enhancement of the profession of athletic training, thereby 
creating better health care for the population it serves; and  

 
 WHEREAS PlaySafe, a 501c(3) nonprofit organization based in Anderson, strives to 

support essential sports medicine services to our athletic youth and community by 
providing certified athletic trainers to secondary schools in our community; and 

 
     WHEREAS athletic trainers work to prevent, treat, and provide rehabilitation for injuries 

while providing health care administration training education and guidance; and 
  

WHEREAS leading organizations concerned with athletic training and health care have united 
in a common commitment to raise public awareness of the importance of the profession of 
athletic training and the role of athletic trainers in the provision of quality health care services, 
their efforts aimed at improving health care for athletes and those engaged in physical activity and promoting athletic 
trainers as health professionals;   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council hereby proclaims March 2023 National Athletic Training Month 

in Anderson County and expresses its appreciation to PlaySafe for the important work it does to support athletic trainers 
who serve all ages of athletes and others in our community. 

 
 FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 
 ________________        __________________  _____________                ____________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 County Council  District One   District Two   District Three 
 
                                                    ____________                              ______________                _________________     

                Brett Sanders                Jimmy Davis                                     M. Cindy Wilson 
    ATTEST:  
     
    _______________                     ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 
    



A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING ANNA MARIE 
BROCK FOR FORTY-FIVE YEARS OF DEDICATED 

SERVICE TO ANDERSON COUNTY 
 

    WHEREAS Ms. Anna Marie Brock, then a newly minted graduate of Tri-County 
Technical College and graduate of BHP who had never held a job previously, walked 
into the Anderson County Auditor’s Office on February 14, 1978, for her first day of 
work and has been continuously employed by Anderson County ever since; and 

 
    WHEREAS Ms. Brock’s trademark Southern charm and steadfast professionalism have 

served her and the citizens of Anderson County well during a career that has spanned six 
different decades; and  

 
    WHEREAS Ms. Brock’s first boss was The Honorable Annie Frances Clark, who 

poured into Ms. Brock for many years as Ms. Brock worked her way up to Deputy 
Auditor, and upon Ms. Clark’s retirement, Ms. Brock was elected Anderson 
County Auditor, serving 2001 through 2005. Ms. Brock then moved to the 
Finance Office to work for Rita Davis managing fixed assets and property and 
liability claims until she became Risk Manager in 2018, then Risk and Safety 
Manager in 2020, and has worked to establish the best safety and risk program in 
the State of South Carolina; and  

 
 WHEREAS Ms. Brock, a summa cum laude graduate of Anderson University, serves 

the Anderson community as a member, former board member, and Paul Harris Fellow 
of the Greater Anderson Rotary Club, a board member of the Good Neighbor Cupboard, a former board 
member of the Anderson Federal Credit Union and current Supervisory Committee Member of Spiro Financial, 
and has supported international missions work for more than 25 years including in Cuba, Guatemala, and El 
Salvador; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council hereby expresses its profound gratitude to Ms. Anna 

Marie Brock for her decades of dedicated and committed service to the citizens of Anderson County. 
 
 FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 ________________        __________________  _____________                ____________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 County Council  District One   District Two   District Three 
 
                                                    ____________                              ______________                _________________     

                Brett Sanders                Jimmy Davis                                     M. Cindy Wilson 
    ATTEST:  
     
    _______________                     ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 
    



A RESOLUTION HONORING AND RECOGNIZING 
ANDERSON COUNTY EMS FOR WINNING EMS SYSTEM 
OF THE YEAR AND STEVE KELLY FOR WINNING EMS 

DIRECTOR OF THE YEAR 
 

    WHEREAS during the Covid-19 pandemic, Anderson County boldly overhauled and 
unified its EMS system from top to bottom, standing up a brand new two-tier, paramedic-
driven system of emergency prehospital care, debuting the system—a partnership 
between Anderson County, AnMed, and Medshore—only 45 days after the vote to create 
it; and 

 
    WHEREAS within weeks of the new system’s launch, response times sharply decreased 

and, since then, the new system is 100% staffed and response time goals—defined as 9 
minutes, 59 seconds or less—are now being met 95% of the time on priority one calls 
versus 65% under the previous system, an accomplishment unprecedented in emergency 
care in the history of Anderson County; and  

 
    WHEREAS on Saturday, March 4th, at the 44th annual South Carolina EMS 

Symposium, the South Carolina EMS Association—in partnership with the South 
Carolina EMS Network—awarded Anderson County EMS the two highest 
awards available to EMS in the State of South Carolina: Anderson County EMS 
is the EMS System of the Year, and Anderson County EMS Director Steve Kelly is 
the EMS Director of the Year;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council hereby expresses its profound 

appreciation to all members of the Anderson County EMS team, to our community partners AnMed and 
Medshore, and to Mr. Kelly for the excellent work they do on a daily basis to save lives in Anderson County 
and for bringing statewide recognition to the good work being done here. 

 
 
 FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 
 ________________        __________________  _____________                ____________ 
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman John B. Wright, Jr.  Glenn Davis   Greg Elgin 
 County Council  District One   District Two   District Three 
 
                                                    ____________                              ______________                _________________     

                Brett Sanders                Jimmy Davis                                     M. Cindy Wilson 
    ATTEST:  
     
    _______________                     ________________ 
    Rusty Burns              Renee Watts 
    County Administrator                Clerk to Council 
    



  
 

NPDocuments:60675904.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-005 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THEREOF 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcel(s) in Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the Agreement 
is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County described in 
the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by 
Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such 
property and Exhibit A and Exhibit B as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 ORDAINED in a meeting duly assembled this 21st day of March, 2023.  
 
ATTEST 
 
 
________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Administrator, Anderson County Chairman, Anderson County Council    
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Renee Watts 
 Clerk to Anderson County Council 
  



NPDocuments:60675904.2  

 
 
 
FORM APPROVED BY: 
 
 
      
County Attorney 
 
 
First Reading: February 21, 2023  
Second Reading: March 7, 2023 
Third Reading: March 21, 2023 
Public Hearing: March 21, 2023 



NPDocuments:60675904.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
Caraustar Mill Group, Inc. (Project Rebuild) 
 
All that piece, parcel or lot of land in Chick Springs Township, Greenville County, State of South Carolina, 
containing 34.27 acres, more or less, (including Southern Railway and county road rights of way) and having 
according to a plat prepared by Piedmont Engineering Service, dated March 1959, entitled “Survey for 
Carolina Paper Board Corp.”, and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for Greenville County, South 
Carolina in Plat Book QQ at Page 43 and having according to said plat the metes and bounds shown thereon. 
 
Tax Map Nos. T010020101200 & T010020101205 
 
Essential Cabinetry Holdings, Inc. (Project President) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Greenville, being shown and designated as 29.21 acres, more or less, as shown on plat prepared for Timothy 
W. Scott, on September 2, 2003, and recorded in the ROD for Greenville County, SC in Plat Book 47-L at 
Page 24, and as shown on a more recent survey prepared by Romo Land Surveys, dated June 21, 2005, entitled 
"Property Survey for TW Scott, LLC," and recorded in the ROD Office for Greenville County, SC in Plat 
Book 50-A, page 42 on June 29, 2005, reference is hereby made to said plat for a more complete metes and 
bounds description.  
 
Being the same property conveyed to EC Simpsonville Funding Company, LLC by deed of NL Ventures X 
Grandview, L.L.C., dated July 23, 2019 and recorded on July 26, 2019 in the Greenville County Register of 
Deeds Office in Deed Book 2571, Page 4035.  
 
Tax Map No.: 0305000100401 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NPDocuments:60675904.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of February 21, March 7, and March 21, at 
which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of which 
ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public _______________.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ___________, 2023 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-006 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEASE REAL PROPERTY TO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF 
ANDERSON COUNTY, INC; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Code requires a public hearing prior to the lease of 
real property; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County is the current owner of a small parcel of land located at 
212 West Church Street in the City of Anderson and identified by tax map number 123-30-15-
005; and 

 WHEREAS, Habitat for Humanity of Anderson County, Inc., is a South Carolina 
nonprofit corporation registered with the State of South Carolina; and  

 WHEREAS, the property referenced will be used by Habitat for Humanity of Anderson 
County, Inc., for the purpose of operating as a nonprofit corporation.    

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1.  Anderson County desires to lease the following real property to Habitat for Humanity of 
Anderson County, Inc., for a nominal fee: 

 a. A parcel of land situated at 212 W. Church Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624; 
 TMS No. 123-30-15-005.  
 
2. The Anderson County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute any 
documents necessary to effectuate the lease of this parcel of real property as described herein and 
in a form substantially similar to, and not materially different from, the lease agreement attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
3. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 
County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 
4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
5. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading in 
accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 

 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 21st day of March, 2023. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 
First Reading:       February 21, 2023 
Second Reading:   March 7, 2023 
Third Reading:      March 21, 2023 
 
Public Hearing:     March 21, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (this "Lease") is made and entered into as of the _______ day of 
March 2023 (the "Effective Date") by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("Lessor"), and HABITAT 
FOR HUMANITY OF ANDERSON, INC, a South Carolina nonprofit corporation ("Lessee"). 
 
WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of that certain piece, parcel or lot of land identified as 
Anderson County, South Carolina Tax Map Parcel No. 123-30-15-002, which is an empty lot in 
the city of Anderson between W. Benson Street and W. Church Steet on the west side of S. 
Murray Avenue (the "Lessor Property"); 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee desires to use the property to conduct its business of being a nonprofit 
corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the lease as described herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFOR, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Recitals; Capitalized Terms. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into the 
Lease. 
 

2. Lease of Lessor Property. Lessor hereby agrees to lease the Lessor Property to 
Lessee for and during the Term (as defined below), commencing as of the Term Commencement 
Date (as defined below), and Lessee hereby agrees to lease the same from Lessor, subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth below.  
 

3. Lessor Property Work. During the Term, Lessee shall make minor 
improvements to the property necessary to safely operate as a nonprofit corporation. All Lessor 
Property Work shall be performed at Lessee's sole expense in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations. The Lessor Property Work shall not include any changes to fixtures unless 
agreed upon by the parties in a signed writing. Lessee shall work to remove any trash or debris 
from the Lessor Property and to ensure that it is safe to traverse.  
 

4. Term. The term of this Lease (the "Term") shall commence on March 22, 2023. 
The term of the lease is for 2 years. The Lease may be renewed for an additional 2 years upon 
written agreement from both parties. If Lessee intends to renew for an additional 2 years, Lessee 
must notify the Lessor, between 180 and 90 days prior to the end of the Lease Term, of its 
intention in writing. Lessor may then agree or disagree to renew the lease for an additional 2 
years. The parties may renew for an additional 2 years up to five (5) times, meaning the lease 
cannot be extended past March 22, 2035. Both parties may agree in a signed writing to terminate 
the lease at any time. 
 

5. Payment of Rent. Lessee shall pay to the Lessor a yearly rental during the Term 
of this Lease of $5.00 ("Base Rent"). Rent shall be due on the 15th of December.  



2 
 

6. Insurance.  Lessee shall carry (or cause to be carried) at Lessee’s sole expense 
and shall pay (or cause to be paid) all premiums for insurance to cover Lessee’s liability and 
automobile insurance on the property. Lessee will also add Anderson County as an additionally 
insured on any policy covering the property. Lessee shall provide to Lessor certificates that the 
insurance coverage required herein is in effect. Failure to provide the requested certificates 
within 30 days of the request will be grounds for the termination of this lease by Lessor. 
 

7. No Liens. Lessee shall promptly pay all persons furnishing labor or materials 
with respect to any work performed by Lessee or its contractor on or about the Lessor Property. 
In the event any mechanics' or other lien shall at any time be filed against the Lessor Property by 
reason of work, labor, services, or materials performed or furnished to or on behalf of Lessee, 
Lessee shall immediately cause the same to be discharged of record within thirty (30) days of 
notice of filing. 
 

8. Lessor and Lessee Representations and Warranties. Lessor and Lessee each 
represents and warrants that, with respect to itself: (a) this Lease has been duly authorized, 
executed, and delivered by such party and constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of 
such party; (b) there are no actions, suits, or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of such 
party, threatened against or affecting such party, at law or in equity or before any governmental 
authority which would impair such party's ability to perform its obligations under this Lease; (c) 
the consummation of the transactions hereby contemplated and the performance of this Lease by 
such party will not result in any breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any other 
agreement to which it is a party; and (d) the consummation of the transactions hereby 
contemplated and the performance of this Lease by such party will not result in a violation of any 
applicable law, statute, ordinance or regulation, or any judgment, order, writ injunction, decree 
or rule of any court or other governmental agency or authority or of any determination or award 
of any arbitrator by which it is bound. 
 

9. Indemnification. Lessee agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Lessor 
from any cost, claim, loss, or damage of any type, including attorney’s fees, to the extent that 
they arise from any situation that occurs because of Lessee’s use of Lessor Property or from this 
lease agreement.  
 

10. Assignment. Neither party shall assign, mortgage, or encumber its interest in this 
Lease, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party. Any transfer in 
interest must be done in accordance with the rights and obligations under this lease so that such 
remain unchanged. 
 

11. Notices. All notices under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be delivered 
personally, sent by Federal Express or other commercial overnight courier service, sent by First 
Class Mail, return receipt requested, or by email, with an original to follow by regular mail, to 
the addresses set forth below. Any notice or other communication given as hereinabove provided 
shall be deemed effectively given or received on the date of delivery, if delivered by hand or by 
overnight courier, on the date of transmission if by email (provided duplicate notice is also sent 
by First Class Mail and no notice of failure of transmission is received by the sender), or on the 
third (3rd) business day following the postmark date of such notice or other communication sent 



3 
 

by First Class Mail, return receipt requested. Counsel for the parties may send notices on behalf 
of their clients. 
 

If to Lessor: 
 

Name: Rusty Burns 
Address: PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
Email: rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

 
 

If to Lessee: 
 

Name: Habitat for Humanity of Anderson, Inc. 
Address: 210 S Murray Ave, Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
Email: info@habitatanderson.org 

 
12. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Lease shall be governed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of South Carolina. All disputes under this Lease shall be resolved by 
litigation in the Courts of the State of South Carolina, Anderson County, including the Federal 
Courts therein, and Lessee and Lessor herein each consent to the jurisdiction of such Courts, 
agree to accept service of process by restricted certified mail, and hereby waive any 
jurisdictional or venue defenses otherwise available. 
 

13. Attorneys' Fees. If any action is brought by either party against the other in 
connection with or arising out of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from 
the other party its reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with the prosecution or defense of such action. 
 

14. No Agency; No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Lease is intended, nor shall in any 
way be construed, to create any form of partnership, agency, or joint venture relationship 
between the parties. 
 

15. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in counterparts, all of which, 
collectively, shall constitute one document. Counterparts may be delivered via facsimile, 
electronic mail or other verifiable transmission method, and any counterpart so delivered will be 
deemed to have been duly and validly delivered and be valid and effective for all purposes. Any 
counterparts must be signed by both parties. 
 

16. No Waivers. No waiver by any party of any of the provisions hereof shall be 
effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the party providing the waiver. No 
waiver by any party of any failure or refusal to comply with any obligations under this Lease 
shall be deemed a waiver of any other or subsequent failure or refusal to so comply. 
 

17. Severability. If any term or provision of this Lease is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect, 
invalidate, or render unenforceable any other term or provision of this Lease. Upon such 



4 
 

determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the parties 
shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Lease so as to effect the original intent of the parties 
as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions 
contemplated by this Lease be consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent 
possible. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Lease pursuant to all necessary 
authorizations or actions of the Lessor and Lessee, as applicable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THIS AREA INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

LESSOR: 
 
ANDERSON COUNTY, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of 
South Carolina 
 
_______________________________ 
By: Rusty Burns 
Its: County Administrator 
Date: 
 
 
 
LESSEE: 
 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF ANDERSON COUNTY, INC., a South Carolina Nonprofit 
Corporation 
 
_______________________________ 
By: Angela Wilson 
Its: Executive Director 
Date: 
 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of:   
 
       _______________________________ (Seal) 
 
 
       _______________________________ (Seal) 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  ) 
                                                                                    
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Rusty Burns, as Administrator for Anderson 
County, South Carolina, and the other witness above-named this _____ day of March, 2023, and the 
subscribing witness swore to me that he/she is not a party to or beneficiary of this transaction. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ (Seal) 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
Printed Name: ___________________________ 
 
My Commission Expires:___________________             
 
 



 

Page 1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-007 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 24-115 (INTENSITY STANDARDS) OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED HERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 

subdivision of the State of South Carolina, acting by and through the Anderson County Council, previously 

adopted Section 24-115 of the Anderson County Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to amend Section 24-115 to further address, 

among other things, the requirements for a traffic impact study for certain development activities. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina 

in meeting duly assembled that:  

1. Section 24-115 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is hereby 

amended to read as shown in Exhibit A (final version) and B (a compare version with the current Code), 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson, South Carolina, 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent 

herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

4. Should any part or portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or unenforceable 

by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the remainder of this 

Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon Third Reading and Enactment by 

Anderson County Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 

 

 

ENACTED in a meeting duly assembled this    day of   2023. 
 
ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Rusty Burns          Tommy Dunn 
Anderson County Administrator        Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 

Renee D. Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon  
County Attorney 
 
 
First Reading: March 21, 2023 
Second Reading:    
Third Reading:    
Public Hearing:   

 



Exhibit A  

Sec. 24-115. - Intensity standards.  

(a)  Definition. Intensity is a measure of development, designed principally to regulate land use in 
accordance with the design function and carrying capacity of the road on which it is located.  

(b)  Purposes. The purposes of this section are to:  

(1)  Relate land use intensity to the design function and carrying capacity of the county's road 
network.  

(2)  Reduce the cost of road repair and maintenance by prohibiting from residential roads intense 
uses which would overload and accelerate the deterioration of such roads.  

(3)  Promote the safety and convenience of vehicular traffic.  

(4)  Protect the residential quality of neighborhoods by limiting nonresidential traffic.  

(5)  Promote the safety of neighborhood residents.  

(c)  Road classification. In order to carry out the purposes of subsection (b) of this section, all roads in the 
county are hereby classified on the basis of their traffic carrying capabilities, their general function in 
the circulation system, and the existing land use of abutting properties. The classification system is 
based on concepts and criteria contained in the Highway Functional Classification Manual, Concepts, 
Criteria, and Procedures, U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, July 
1974. The manual classifies roads into one of three functional categories:  

(1)  Local;  

(2)  Collector; and  

(3)  Arterial.  

Local roads are separated from other types because they generally carry significant volumes of foot and 
bicycle traffic and are used by children. Therefore, traffic volumes must remain relatively low in order to 
provide the necessary safety for residential neighborhoods. Collector roads generally form barriers 
between subdivisions. Their traffic volumes and design speeds are correspondingly greater since their 
function is to connect major traffic routes. Arterial roads constitute the highway network upon which most 
traffic must flow. The efficiency of the system requires that arterial roads accommodate traffic at high 
speeds over considerable distances. For purposes of this section, these functional categories are refined 
to form a four-road classification system (see appendix B (section 24-251) for diagram), characterized as 
follows:  

(1)  Minor local (access) road. A minor local road is one designed primarily to access abutting 
properties. This road normally terminates in a cul-de-sac, loop or other turnaround, with no more 
than two access points.  

(2)  Major local (access) road. A major local road is one designed primarily to access abutting 
properties. This road is characterized as one having two or more access points,and receiving 
traffic from minor local roads.  

(3)  Collector road. A collector road is one that connects local access roads to the highway systems 
major and high-speed arterial roads. The collector road provides both land access service and 
traffic service within residential subdivisions, commercial and industrial areas. Collector roads 
form barriers between subdivisions and are designed for higher speeds and traffic volumes than 
major or minor local roads and shall not be designed as cul-de-sac.  

(4)  Arterial road. An arterial road is one designed to carry through traffic and to carry intra-county 
traffic. Arterial roads are characterized as having access control, channelized intersections, 
restricted parking and signalization. The concept of service to abutting land is subordinate to the 
provision of travel service.  

(d)  Standards. The following design capacity standards shall govern the intensity of development along 
all roads in the county:  



Road Classification  Maximum ADT*  

Minor local road (one access point)  500  

Minor local road (two access points)  1,000  

Major local road  1,600  

Collector road  No maximum  

Arterial road  No maximum  

*ADT=Average Daily Traffic (trips)  

  

(e)  Capacity calculations. All preliminary certificate of compliance, building permit applications, and 
other applications affecting minor or major local County roads shall be evaluated on the basis of their 
traffic generation versus road capacity. To measure the impact of a proposed use, the weekday daily 
trips shall be calculated using information from the latest edition of Trip Generation, Institute of 
Transportation Engineers.  A weekday traffic count will account for traffic generated by existing uses, 
and traffic to be generated by developments that have been approved but not built shall also be added 
using Trip Generation, Institute of Transportation Engineers.  

 Where a proposed use will cause the ADT to exceed the maximum set for such County roads by 
subsection (d) of this section, the applicant shall choose one of these options: 

(i) Present a petition to change the road classification to the development standards manager.  The 
petition shall include sufficient documentation to support the assertion that the road is not 
currently properly classified.  The development standards manager may approve the petition 
upon approval by the Roads & Bridges manager.  If the petition is denied, the applicant shall 
choose one of the two remaining options. 

(ii) Adjust the proposed use so that the resulting ADT does not exceed that associated with the    
subject County road’s classification.   

(ii)  Improve the subject County road to bring it up to the design standards of the higher classification 
resulting from the subject development.  This improvement must be made along the frontage of 
the site on the side of the road on which the site is located.  

(f)  Traffic impact studies. A traffic impact study shall be required for access approval through the state 
and county encroachment permit process when a development will generate 75 or more trips during 
the peak hour of the traffic generator or the peak hour of the adjacent street (using the latest edition 
of Trip Generation, Institute of Transportation Engineers). The traffic impact study and subsequent 
access locations, turning lane and signalization requirements shall follow the South Carolina 
Department of Transportation Access and Roadside Management Standards, latest edition and any 
additional requirements set forth by the County.  The developer shall be responsible for all costs of the 
required study, roadway improvements identified in the study, and right-of-way acquisition. The traffic 
impact study shall be included with the preliminary plat or site plan. Any changes to the traffic study or 
preliminary plat must be resubmitted to the planning commission. Submission of the study before 
official application with preliminary plat or site plan is recommended. 



 The developers or their traffic engineers shall contact the County’s Principal Engineer or his/her 
designee before beginning the study to obtain the scope and other requirements of the study.  The 
study shall be conducted by a consultant on the County’s approved TIS consultant list.  

 If additional right-of-way not under the control of the developer is required to implement required roadway 
improvements, the developer shall make a reasonable effort to obtain the necessary right-of-way to perform the 
recommended improvements, including offering an amount as appraised by a licensed SC real estate appraiser 
(fair market value).  If right-of-way cannot be obtained, the developer is required to make a written request to the 
County and go back to the Planning Commission for a waiver if the requirement was part of a Planning 
Commission approval.  The Commission will consider the waiver if the developer provides written documentation 
that a fair market value offer was offered and not accepted. 

(Code 2000, § 38-118; Ord. No. 03-007, § 1, 4-15-2003; Ord. No. 2003-069, § 1a, 1-20-2004; 
Ord. No. 2006-025, § 2, 8-15-2006; Ord. No. 2011-017, § 1, 7-19-2011; Ord. No. 2017-036 , exh. 
B, 12-5-2017; Ord. No. 2020-034 , § 1, 12-15-2020)  

 

In addition to SCDOT requirements, any turns from a County road shall be checked against 
warrants in the following tables.  See above regarding right-of-way. 

Posted Speed 2 Lane Routes More than 2 Lanes on Main Road 
                AADT                 AADT  
 < 6,000 >=6,000 <10,000 >+10,000 
35 MPH or less 200 RTV a day 100 RTV a day 200 RTV a day  100 RTV a day 
40 to 50 MPH 150 RTV a day 75 RTV a day 150 RTV a day 75 RTV a day 
55 to 60 MPH  100 RTV a day 50 RTV a day 100 RTV a day 50 RTV a day 
>=65 Always Always Always Always 

Minimum Volumes Requiring Right Turn Lanes 

Posted Speed 2 Lane Routes More than 2 Lanes on Main Road 
                ADT                         ADT  
 <6,000 >=6,000 <10,000 >+10,000 

35 MPH or Less 300 LTV a day 200 LTV a day 400 LTV a day 300 LTV a day 
40 to 50 MPH 250 LTV a day 175 LTV a day 325 LTV a day 250 LTV a day 
>= 55 MPH 200 LTV a day 150 LTV a day 250 LTV a day 200 LTV a day 

Minimum Volumes Requiring Left Turn Lanes 

Source: Georgia Department of Transportation. 

 

 (Ord. No. 03-007, § 1, 4-15-03; Ord. No. 2003-069, § 1a, 1-20-04; Ord. No. 2006-025, § 2, 8-
15-06; Ord. No. 2011-017, § 1, 7-19-2011)  

Base ordinance updated through December 2020, Ordinance No. 2020-034. 

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=870358&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=1147634&datasource=ordbank


EXHIBIT B









ORDINANCE 2023-008 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE APPROVAL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, TO GRANT A RIGHT OF WAY AND EASEMENT UNTO THE CITY OF 
ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA, ACROSS PROPERTY OWNED BY ANDERSON 
COUNTY AND BEARING TAX MAP NUMBER 150-00-02-005 FOR INSTALLATION 
OF A SEWER LINE; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Anderson, South Carolina presently has an existing twenty (20) 
foot right-of-way and easement across property owned by Anderson County, South Carolina, and 
bearing Tax Map Number 150-00-02-005 and located in the vicinity of Mildred Street. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Anderson, South Carolina needs an additional eighteen (18) feet 
of permanent right of way and fifteen  (15) feet of temporary right-of-way for its sewer project; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to grant unto the City of Anderson the requested 
right-of- way and easement for the purpose of installation and maintenance of a sewer line. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County Council hereby approves the grant of the Right-of-Way and 
Easement to the City of Anderson, South Carolina as described and set forth on that certain 
document titled Right-of-Way and Easement for the purpose of construction and operation of a 
sewer line. 
 
 2. All Orders and Ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 
only, hereby repealed and rescinded.  
 
 3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked and 
rescinded.  
 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council.  
  



 
 

ENACTED in a duly assembled meeting this ____ day of ______, 2023.  

 

ATTEST:       FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:  

 

___________________________  ___________________________________ 
By: Rusty Burns     By: Tommy Dunn  
Its: Administrator      Its: Chairman, Anderson County Council   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 
First Reading:  
Second Reading:  
Third Reading:  
Public Hearing:  

 
 



Exhibit A 
 

(Contract under Negotiation) 

















 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee D. Watts 

Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 AGENDA 

Planning and Public Works Meeting 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023, at 1:15 pm 

101 South Main Street 
Anderson, SC 

Anderson County Historical Courthouse -Administrator’s Conference Room 
 

Chairwoman Cindy Wilson, District Seven, Presiding 
                                              Honorable Jimmy Davis, District Six 
                                             Honorable John B. Wright, District One 
 

 
 

     1. Call to Order        Chairwoman Cindy Wilson 
 

 
     2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance                                                 Honorable Cindy Wilson 
         
         
     3.  Discussion of Tree Ordinance                                                                     Mr. Jon Caime 
 
 
     4. Discussion of Revisions to the Anderson County Stormwater Management 

Requirements      
Mr. Jon Batson 

 
 

    5. Discussion of RV Park Ordinance                                                           Ms. Alesia Hunter 
 

     
     6.  Old Business 
 
           
     7.  New Business  
 
 
     8.  Citizen Comments 
 
 
     9.  Adjournment    











 
























































	Agenda CCM March 21, 2023
	3a Proclamation National Athletic Training Month
	3b Resolution Anna Marie Brock
	4 Resolution EMS/Steve Kelly
	7a Ordinance 2023-005 MCIP 2010 Park
	7b Ordinance 2023-006 Lease Habitat for Humanity
	9a Ordinance 2023-007 Intensity Standards
	9b Ordinance 2023-008 RW Easement City of Anderson
	13 Summary of Fraenkishe FILOT
	14a Bid #23-039 ACTC Resurfacing
	14b RFQ #23-038
	15 PPW Committee Agenda
	16a Appropriation Request Homeland Park Community Watch
	16b Appropriation Request Leadership Anderson Class 38
	16c Appropriation Request Pendleton Bass Fishing
	16d Appropriation Request Powdersville YMCA Mentoring Program
	17a Building & Codes Report
	17b Budget Transfers
	17c Paving
	17d Special Projects



